





A/C.6/38/SR.24
English
Page 3

(Mr. Shellid, Libyan Arab Jamahiriya)

5. Since the losses suffered by countries as a result of the activities of
mercenaries were generally severe, the future convention must provide for damage
reparation. That would be in keeping with international law and established
practice, as reflected in, for example, Security Council resolution 527 (1982),
which had required South Africa to compensate Iesotho for the damage to life and
property resulting from its aggression against that country. His delegation also
considered that the parties to a dispute should make every effort to avoid
endangering international peace and security and should strive to resolve their
differences peacefully, either bilaterally or within a regional framework.

6. In the view of his delegation, the mandate of the Ad Hoc Committee should be
renewed so that it could complete its work of drafting a convention to be adopted

at a future session of the General Assembly.

7. Mr. RASON (Madagascar) said that the articles on the use of terms would be the
key provisions of the future convention. The definition of the term "mercenary” in
article 47, paragraph 2, of Additional Protocol I to the Geneva Conventions of 1949
was inadequate, in that it related only to situations of armed conflict.
Mercenaries were active in peace~time too. They were often inwolved in acts of
aggression against sovereign States, subversion, interference in the internal
affairs of States, attempts to destabilize Governments and attempts to neutralize
liberation movements that were struggling against colonialism and foreign

domination. The definitions in the future convention should encompass all those
elements.

8. Some delegations had contended that the mercenaries themselves were solely and
individually liable for their acts. His delegation disagreed. Any State from
whose territory mercenaries organized raids into the territory of another State or
which used mercenaries for armed attacks on another State was in violation of
international law. Primary responsibility for the actions of mercenaries rested
with the States and entities which recruited, trained, financed and dispatched
them. Without such support, mercenaries could not exist. The future convention
should therefore clearly define the obligation and responsibility of all States to
mohibit the recruitment, financing and training of mercenaries in their
territories, to punish both the participants and the organizers, to combat their
activities and to co-operate in pursuing the goals of the convention by taking all
necessary legislative and administrative measures.

9. His delegation hoped that the Ad Hoc Committee would be able to complete the
definitions as soon as possible and to produce generally acceptable solutions
in 1984.

10. Mr. ENMIASAIKHAN (Mongolia) expressed satisfaction at the outcome of the third
session of the Ad Hoc Committee.

11. With the collapse of the colonial system, mercenaries had been increasingly
used by imperialist Powers either to prolong certain colonial régimes or to keep
newly independent States under their neo-colonialist exploitation and domination.

[eos






A/C.6/38/5R.24
English
Page 5

(M. Enkhasaikhan, Mongolia}

15 The definition of “hostile acts® should be as broad as possible, in order not
to leave any loopholes. In that connectlon, his delegation suggested that

‘wnitive actions® should be added to the five types of activities enumerated in
draft article 2, paragraph 2. It welcomed the inclusion of paragraph 2 (e) in

draft article 2, since it was not unusual for mercenaries to be used to destabilize
4 State by carrying out economic sabotage, as had been done by the CIA in Nicaragua.

16. Draft articles 3, 4 and 5 could serve as a good basis for the comprehensive
mohibitfon of all possible acts and attempts that mercenaries could engage in.

ils delegation could not agree that a person should be considered to be a
‘mercenary® only when he had actually carried out the criminal activities specified
in the future convention. If that was the case, individuals who for one reason or
another, including technical reasons, had been unahle or had falled to perpetrate a
planned crime would be able to escape justice., Moreover, since the mercenaries
vould not be brought to justice, those who had hired, trained, financed and
dispatched them would also evade regpongibility.

17. Draft article 6 was one of the most important articles of the future
convention, because, in order for the conwention to be effective, it was esscential
to eatablish the responsibility of States which did not prevent their nationals
from being hired as metrcenaries, permitted persons to be recruited, trained,
financed or transported within their territory or in any other way promoted their
eriminal activities. Before committing their crimes, mercenaries underwent special
eparat fons, and States therefore had the possibility of taking preventive
xtions, Similarly, advertising and the publishing of information designed to
facilitate the recruitment, use, financimg or training of mercenaries should be
tanned completely. In cases like that of Central America, where a certailn
Covernment was engaged in overthrowing the Government of another State by
recrulting, equipping, financing and training armed bands, the former Government
should be held directly responsible for the acts of mercenaries, irrespective of
their nationality. The future convention should specifically provide that States
engaged in mercenary or related activities in amy manner would be held responsible
for those activities, In view of the fact that there were still in one particular
country some statesmen who considered covert actions a "part of government® and a
tight which a State might exercise when it belleved that its interests were best
served by them, and others who, although recognizing such actions to be illeqgal and
mnning counter to the international obligations of that country, seemed to feel
that the latter should not be held responsihle for them, the need for such an
uwrequivocal provision was apparent. At its next sesslon, the Ad Hoc Committee
siould concentrate greater attention on that important issue.

18. It was clear from section III of the report that Working Group B had done much
vseful work on questiona relating to preventive measures, damage reparation and
settlement of disputes, and he hoped that it would be able to complete that work in
the near future.

1S, His delegation supported the view that the Comuittee's mandate should be

renewed and that the Committee should be asked to speed up its work of drafting an
international convention outlawing the use of mercenaries and mercenarism.

/-aa



A/C.6/38/SR.24
English
Page 6

20. Mr. SANGSOMSAK (Lao People's Democratic Republic) said that mercenarism had
become a particularly serious problem as a result of the agyressive policies of the
colonialist and imperialist Powers against national liberation movements and
developing countries which had chosen the road of justice, equality and social
progress. Nursing illusions of regaining their lost positions and re-establishing
their former domination, those Powers used mercenarism as a new means of subverting
and destabilizing Governments whose policy was not acceptable to them. Mercenarism
was the most abominable manifestation of the use of force and represented a
congtant danger for the small and medium-sized countries of the third world.
Several African and Asian countries had been the victims of aggression in recent
years, while, in Central America, Cuba and Nicaragua were threatened by an imminent
invasion of mercenaries trained and organized in the territory of their large
neighbour. His own country had been subjected to hostile acts on the part of
mercenaries financed by certain Powers, including subversion and acts of sabotage
against its economic and social infrastructures. It therefore vigorously condemned
mercenarism and stressed the urgent need for an international convention to
eliminate it for ever. However, certain Western countries, despite hypocritical
statements in favour of such a convention, continued to employ all sorts of
pretexts to obstruct the drafting of one, or at least to limit its scope.

21. The Ad Hoc Committee had made some satisfactory progress, and his delegation
was particularly encouraged by the draft articles submitted by Working Group A as
contained in paragraph 56 of the report. That draft was a balanced text and could
serve as a basis for future discussion. His delegation welcomed the fact that two
articles were devoted to defining the term "mercenary”, both in relation to
internat ional armed conflicts and in peace-time, which meant that the convent ion
could cover the question of mercenaries in its entirety, since it was a fact that
mercenary activities against developing countries and peoples fighting for national
independence had been carried out in peace-time. Since it was not necessary to
specify the nationality of mercenaries, his delegation felt that paragraph 1 (d) of
article 2 should be deleted, especially as paragraph 1 (a) dealt comprehensively
with the same question. The deletion of paragraph 1 (d) would extend the scope of
the future convention to cover mercenaries of every kind, including those recruited

among exiles to carry out acts of destabilization and subversion against their
country of origin.

22, His delegation was gratified that it had finally been recognized that any
person guilty in peace-time of the crimes set forth in articles 2 and 3 would be
punished as a mercenary. That provision had thwarted the efforts of certain
countries to treat mercenaries acting in situations other than armed conflicts as
common criminals. According to that logic, there was no need to draft a convention
on mercenarism, since it was not necessary to be a mercenary in order to be
prosecuted for violent crimes. It was no secret why those countries protected
mercenariess they were the tools with which they carried out their policy of
intervention, domination and exploitation.

23. Draft article 6 was the corner-stone of the future convention because it

imposed a number of obligationa on States, which should be strictly prohibited from
carrying out illegal or hostile activities against other States or tolerating

/o--






A/C.6/38/SR.24
English
Page 8

{Mc. Bizimana, Rvanda)

29. The definition of the term "mercenary” should be both flexible and precise and
should take account of mercenary acts in peace-time and in situations of both
international and non-international armed conflict. Furthermore, the measures to
be adopted by States with a view to preventing mercenary acts should be specified
in the future convention. Particular attention should also be paid to the question
of damage reparation following violations by States of their obligations under the
convention. His delegation would endorse any proposal or initiative aimed at
deterring and eliminating mercenary acts.

30. M. CONNELL (Barbados) said that a disturbingly large number of new States in
Africa, Asia and the Caribbean had already been the targets either of mercenary
attacks or threats of such attacks, the manner of which had sometimes been unique.
Mercenary attacks were inspired and facilitated by the economic, strategic and
infrastructural vulnerability of the newly independent States.

31. In view of the growing complexity of the issue, his delegation was in favour
of retaining the dichotomy in the definition of a mercenary reflected in articles 1
and 2 of the text contained in conference room paper A/AC.207/1983/CRP.5 (A/38/43,
para. 30). The definition of a "hostile act” laid down in article 3-of that text
should be expanded to cover, as proposed by the delegation of the Bahamas, “armed
violence to bring about the secession of part or parts of a State's territory”
(ibid., para. 23). In some instances, articles 2 to 6 in conference room paper
A/AC.207/1983/CRP.5 contained no more than a bare outline of the relevant concepts,
but drafting niceties should not be permitted to hold the Ad Hoc Committee back
unduly in its work.

32. On the other hand, where the liberty of the human person was involved, every
word should be carefully weigheds one example of that was the word “"knowingly".
Careful reflection was called for before creating crimes of strict liability that
did not require a mental element to accompany the actus reus. At the broader level
of the convention as a whole, it was necessary to decide how specific the Ad Hoc
Cormittee needed to be in preparing its draft.

33. A close reading of article 15 of the draft submitted by Nigeria indicated that
damage reparation was not unreasonable, since it was the ultimate recourse. That
article was in keeping with the well-established principle that breach of an
international obligation entailed international responsibility. Perhaps some
delegations beljeved that the statement of that principle in the draft text would
serve no practical purpose. However, the International Law Commission had recently
reaffirmed a similar principle in its draft articles on State responsibility.

34. His delegation hoped that an appropriate sense of urgency would lead to early
agreement on a draft acceptable to all concerned, and believed that the Ad Hoc
Committee's mandate should be renewed.

35. Mr. AMORIN (Urugquay) said that little substantive progress had been made in

the Ad Hoc Committee's work owing to the fact that there were two basically
different approaches to the drafting of the future convention. Those who favoured

/O..






A/C.6/38/SR.24
English

Page 10

{Md . Wabuge, Kenya)

applicable in the case of internal armed conflicts. Article 47, paragraph 2, of
the Protocol should in fact be used aimply as a point of referenmce, FPRurthermore,
rather than actual participation in hostilities, the mimary cxiterlion for
determining whether an individual or an entity was involved in mercenary activities
should be the intention to participate in such activitles or the mmovision of
asslstance In that connectlon. With regard to the commission of offences
constituting a crime against the peace and security of a State, his delegation
supported the views expressed in paragraph 47 of the Ad Hoc Commlttee's report.

42, His delegation aleo endorsed the view expressed in the report of Working
Group’B that, upon becoming parties to the future conventlon, States should
prohiblt mercenary activities through legislative, administrative and other
measures, 5tates should be able to apprehend any person in transit who was
reasonably believed to be involved in mercenary activities. In that connection,
his delegation still preferred the formulation in article 8 of the Nigerian draft.
on the question of damage reparation, it endorsed the views expressed in

paragraph 74 of the report. lastly, the Ad Hoc Committee should concentrate on the
controveraial substant ive matters hefore deciding what type of machinery ahould be
adopted for the settlement of digputes.

43. His delegation was In favour of extending the Ad Hoc Committee’s mandate and
would like that Committee to be expressly instructed to complete its work as soon
as possihle.

44, Mr. KOLOMA (Mozambique) noted that the Ad Hoc Committee had examined,

inter alia, document A/AC.207/1983/CRP.5, which was reproduced in paragraph 30 of
its report {A/38/43), and said that Mozambique would welcome an international legal
instrument aimed at halting activities such as those referred to in article 3 of
that conference room paper. It could not he denied that the recruitment,
financing, training and use of persons to carry out such activities, particularly
against developipg countries and national liberation movements, seriously
threatened international peace, security and stability. The apartheid rdégime of
South Africa, in pursuing ita policy of destabilization and aggression against its
neighbours, often resorted to such methods, and therce were many other examples of
the phenonenon in Aslia and Latin America, particularly Nicaragua. No doubt the
proponents of an international convention were comcerned about that kind of
situation,

45. The cholce of the tem "mercenary® in reference to any person engaged in the
activities referred to in article 3 of the conference room paper was unfortunate
and had created serious difficultles for the Ad Hoc Committee. The definition of
that term contalned_ in article 47, paragraph 2, of additional Protocel I to the
Geneva Convent lons of. 1949 did not cover situations other than those of armed
conflict. Buch other situations were of major comcern to most developing
countries, which were often the victims of the activities referred to in article 3
of the conference room paper. Glven the tenor of General Assembly resolution 35/48
and the existence of an international legal régime relating to mercenaries in
situations of armed conflict, it wag clear that the primary aim of the future

/-..






A/C.6/38/SR.24
English
Page 12

ORGANIZATION OF WORK

53. Mr. ROMANOV (Secretary of the Committee) said that, according to the
Committee's programme of work (A/C.6/38/2), item 121 (Progressive development of
the principles and norms of international law relating to the new international
economic order) was to be considered on 25 and 26 October. The Executive Director

of UNITAR would be prepared to introduce the item at the 25th meeting of the
Committee.

54. Mr:. CALERO RODRIGUES (Brazil) said that his delegation had no objection to the
introduction of item 121 at the next meeting. It was a good idea to allow

delegations some time after the introduction of an item to prepare for the actual
debate.

55. Brazil believed that the Committee should review its recent practice of
dlscussing two very different items at the same meeting. The debate on item 120
(Consideration of the draft articles on most-favoured-nation clauses) had been
adversely affected by consideration of the more interesting item 129 (Report of the
Ad Hoc Committee on the Drafting of an International Convention against the
Recruitmernt, Use, Financing and Training of Mercenaries). In future, the Committee
should try to avoid discussing such unrelated items at one and the same meeting.

56. The General Assembly was approaching the mid-point of its current session, and
yet the Sixth Committee hadi eclected only one Vice-Chairman. Every effort must be
made to persuade the States concerned to submit their nominations as soon as
possible.

57. His delegation was interested in knowing when the Working Group on the Review
of the Multilateral Treaty-Making Process would begin its meetings. If the Working
Group was to i.: truly productive, it should meet carly in the session.

58. The CHAIRMAN said he was sure that the Committee attached equal importance to
items 120 and 129. AlLthough more delegations had addressed themselves to the
question of mercenaries, those that had made statements on the most-favoured-nation
clause had covered a wide range of political, economic and legal aspects. The
purpose of discussing two items at the same meeting was to expedite progress on
both of them. By hearing the introduction of item 121 at the 25th meeting, the
Committee would be adhering to its programme of work and allowing members
sufficient time to prepare their statements.

59, With respect to the election of the second Vice-Chairman, he had on three
occasions appealed to the groups concerned to continue their consultations with a
view to submitting their nominations as soon as possible. In the hope that the
nominations would be forthcoming, he had not asked the President of the General
Assembly to intervene. He again appealed to those concerned to make haste.

60. Consultations were under way with regard to the Working Group on the Review of
the Multilateral Treaty-Making Process. The African Group in the Committee had
held a meet ing on the question, and he hoped to be able to report on the outcome of
that meeting shortly.

The meeting rose at 12.45 p.m,






